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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I call to order

          3  the meeting of the Committee on Environmental

          4  Protection, and I'd like to welcome you to this

          5  hearing today.

          6                 Today at the hearing we'll hear

          7  testimony of legislation that will significantly

          8  improve the health of New York City's residents,

          9  visitors, workers and the environment.

         10                 Of course, I'm referring to proposed

         11  Intro. 191-A, which relates to the use of ultra low

         12  sulfur diesel fuel, and the best available

         13  technology by non-road vehicles in City

         14  construction.

         15                 In September of this year, we held a

         16  hearing on this bill. In light of the testimony

         17  received at that hearing and information gathered

         18  thereafter, proposed Intro. 191-A was amended.

         19                 As I have previously stated, diesel

         20  exhaust from non-road vehicles pose serious health

         21  environmental concerns.

         22                 These concerns stem primarily from

         23  the fact that according to the EPA, diesel exhaust

         24  is not only a likely carcinogen, but pollutants that

         25  are associated with diesel emissions. Such
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          2  particulate matter as nitrogen oxides result in

          3  respiratory problems, such as aggravated asthma and

          4  decreased lung function.

          5                 I'm worried about it a little bit

          6  myself. The last time I went to the doctor, I had to

          7  blow into this thing, and I blew into this thing

          8  that they're like, have you ever had asthma, have

          9  you ever had any kind of whatever? Do you get winded

         10  running up and down the stairs and stuff? I'm like,

         11  well, no. They said you could have done a little

         12  better.

         13                 So, anyway, I'm fine. Next time I

         14  take the test, hopefully when I belong to the thing

         15  I'll do a lot better. A little personal reflection

         16  there.

         17                 Although I recognize that non-road

         18  vehicles play a major role in City's construction

         19  projects, which are not only essential but also a

         20  significant tribute to the City's economy, I've

         21  always believed that we could find common ground

         22  whereby construction activities can occur while

         23  simultaneously providing a cleaner, healthier

         24  environment.

         25                 Proposed Intro. 191-A succeeds by
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          2  requiring the City to use ultra low sulfur diesel

          3  fuel in the best available technology of non-road

          4  vehicles used in City Public Works in order to

          5  reduce their awful pollutants.

          6                 It's without question that proposed

          7  Intro. 191-A is a complex piece of legislation which

          8  the Council will closely monitor as it is

          9  implemented.

         10                 Staff has worked closely with the

         11  Administration, groups representing the environment,

         12  representatives of the construction industry and the

         13  business sector, in an effort to speak to the many

         14  legitimate concerns that have been raised.

         15                 To that end, we firmly believe that

         16  proposed Intro. 191-A does accommodate many of those

         17  concerns, while simultaneously making sure that

         18  construction activities will have fewer adverse

         19  effects on the quality of life in our City.

         20                 Proposed Intro. 191-A is an important

         21  step in the right direction. A sound piece of

         22  legislation that will protect and improve our health

         23  and environment.

         24                 I would like to call on the Counsel

         25  to the Committee, Donna DeCostanzo, to go over some
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          2  of the changes in the bill since the last time. But

          3  just before I do that, I would like to recognize the

          4  Council Members who are joining us today, Councilman

          5  Vallone from Queens, Council Member Jennings from

          6  Queens, Council Member Koppell from the Bronx, and

          7  the prime sponsor of this intro, Council Member

          8  Gerson, from Manhattan.

          9                 I would like to also particularly

         10  thank staff, Donna DeCostanzo and Richard Colon for

         11  all their efforts on this bill and all of you who

         12  have been with us since the beginning trying to help

         13  us to get a really good end product here.

         14                 So, I'll call on Donna DeCostanzo to

         15  go over some of the changes in the bill since the

         16  last time.

         17                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: I'm just going to go

         18  over some of the major changes to this bill. First,

         19  the definition of non-road engine is now defined in

         20  part as an internal combustion engine that is not

         21  subject to standards promulgated under Section 74-11

         22  and Section 75-21 of Title 42 of the US code, rather

         23  than such an engine used in a stationary source.

         24                 And the current definition more

         25  closely parallels the definition of non-road engine
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          2  contained in the Clear Air Act.

          3                 The definition also explicitly states

          4  that the term shall apply to internal combustion

          5  engines, used to power generators, compressors or

          6  similar equipment used in any construction program

          7  or project.

          8                 A second major change deals with the

          9  best available technology.

         10                 Paragraph 1 of Subdivision D contains

         11  more explicit provisions regarding how the

         12  Commissioner of Environmental Protection shall

         13  determine what the best available technology is to

         14  reducing the emissions of pollutants for each type

         15  of diesel powered non-road vehicle covered by the

         16  section.

         17                 The Commissioner must publish the

         18  list of such determinations that shall be based

         19  primarily on the reduction in emissions of

         20  particulate matter and secondarily based on the

         21  reduction in emissions of Nitrogen Oxide associated

         22  with such technology.

         23                 The Commissioner is required to

         24  update determinations on a regular basis, but not

         25  less than once every six months, and the
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          2  Commissioner shall select the best available

          3  technology from technologies that have been verified

          4  by the EPA or the California Air Resources Board,

          5  but the Commissioner may select technology that is

          6  not verified as such.

          7                 The previous version of proposed

          8  Intro. 191-A nearly calls upon the Commissioner to

          9  promulgate rules in accordance with the requirements

         10  of this section. That's the types of retrofitting or

         11  technology to be used, emission targets to be

         12  obtained and proper maintenance of non-road

         13  vehicles.

         14                 A third change concerns the phase-in

         15  period for the legislation. The provisions contained

         16  in the subdivision pertaining to the use of ultra

         17  low sulfur diesel fuel will apply Citywide six

         18  months after the effective date of this section,

         19  rather than one year after such effective date.

         20                 In addition, requirements pertaining

         21  to the use of best available technology for reducing

         22  the emission of pollutants will be completely

         23  phased-in Citywide on a slightly longer schedule,

         24  rather than one year from the effective date of this

         25  section, which is what was included in the previous
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          2  version of the bill.

          3                 The best available technology

          4  requirements will still apply to diesel powered

          5  non-road vehicles owned by, operated by or on behalf

          6  of or leased by a City agency into Public Works

          7  contract site at over 2 million one year after the

          8  effective date of this section.

          9                 The requirements, however, will not

         10  apply to all public works contracts until 18 months

         11  after the effective date of this section. The

         12  effective date of this section is now 180 days

         13  rather than 90 days from the date of its enactment.

         14                 A fourth change involves a provision

         15  for the unavailability of ultra low sulfur diesel

         16  fuel, meaning diesel fuel with the sulfur content of

         17  15 parts per million to meet the needs of City

         18  agencies and requires that the Commissioner of

         19  Environmental Protection make a determination that

         20  diesel fuel with the sulfur content of no more than

         21  30 parts per million may be used in its place to

         22  fulfill the requirements of this section, but in no

         23  event shall such determination be in effect after

         24  September 1st, 2006.

         25                 And the last major change that I want
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          2  to mention concerns a few waiver provisions that

          3  were written into the bill regarding the best

          4  available technology reducing the emission of

          5  pollutants.

          6                 The previous version of proposed

          7  Intro. 191-A did not contain any such provision. The

          8  requirements regarding the use of the best available

          9  technology do not apply to the diesel-powered

         10  non-road vehicle where the best available technology

         11  is unavailable where such vehicle is used to satisfy

         12  the requirements of a specific Public Works contract

         13  for fewer than 20 calendar days where the

         14  Commissioner of Environmental Protection has issued

         15  a waiver based upon the City agency or contractor

         16  having demonstrated that the use of best available

         17  technology might endanger the operator of those

         18  working near such vehicles.

         19                 In the case of the first and third

         20  waiver options, the City agency or contractor must

         21  still use whatever technology for reducing the

         22  emission of pollutants, if it is available and

         23  appropriate for such non-road vehicle.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         25  you, Donna, for the fine print. And it's my pleasure
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          2  and honor to call upon the prime sponsor of this

          3  legislation, Council Member Gerson, who has a brief

          4  statement.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chair, and I will be very brief, because I have

          7  addressed this from the first hearing, and I

          8  actually think the bill speaks for itself. I do

          9  believe that when we adopt this bill, before the end

         10  of the year presumably, we will have made a major

         11  step forward to a cleaner environment and a

         12  healthier city ambiance for all New Yorkers. And

         13  it's worth noting that this major step, deserves

         14  noting that this major step was made possible by

         15  several factors.

         16                 The extraordinary working

         17  relationship among the different environmental

         18  organizations and the City Council which really

         19  pulled this together, the input of the industry in a

         20  collaborative and cooperative, the support of all of

         21  my colleagues on this Committee, our Speaker and

         22  also the Borough President from whom we will hear,

         23  the grassroots support from within the communities

         24  from Lower Manhattan which suffered an unprecedented

         25  environmental disaster, but throughout our City
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          2  we'll hear from Susan Stetzer of Community Board 3,

          3  and certainly I was directly aided and abetted by

          4  the gentleman to my right, Solomon Turkel, from my

          5  office, who really labored hard on this.

          6                 But Mr. Chair, none of this would be

          7  possible were it not for your commitment and your

          8  outstanding leadership, and I've said it before, I

          9  know I'll have great occasions to say it again, that

         10  our City is better and healthier and cleaner because

         11  we have Council Member Gennaro as the Chair of our

         12  Environmental Committee, and on behalf of my

         13  Committee I want to thank you and acknowledge that,

         14  and I've also been privileged in this course of this

         15  to work very closely with someone who you're

         16  fortunate to be served, you have an outstanding team

         17  all around but I happen to work more closely with

         18  Donna DeCostanzo, and I'm just continually impressed

         19  with her lawyering and her professionalism, as well

         20  as her dedication, and I wanted to thank her for

         21  putting up with my office and I in getting this

         22  done, and I know Richard Colon behind the scenes for

         23  us and the rest of the staff labored arduously, and

         24  this is really a team effort and you're the captain

         25  of the team, Mr. Chair, and I just want to thank
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          2  you.

          3                 And I'll just conclude by pointing

          4  out, as this will be a major step forward, it's not

          5  the end of the journey, and as soon as we get this

          6  done, we should get working on additional follow-up

          7  legislation that will cover and include reductions

          8  in diesel and other pollutants from other sources

          9  for which it remains feasible to make significant

         10  reductions, and I look forward to working closely

         11  with you on that long-term agenda.

         12                 But as I said to my friends from the

         13  environmental movement, this will be a wonderful

         14  holiday present to our lungs.

         15                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         17  you, Council Member Gerson. I deeply appreciate your

         18  statements and your thanks of our great staff.

         19                 The honorable Council Member Koppell

         20  would like to make a statement as well.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: A brief

         22  statement. First of all, apologies, because I cannot

         23  stay too much longer, but I am strongly supportive

         24  of the legislation.

         25                 Let me also simply say that one of
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          2  the questions I asked and spoke to the sponsor about

          3  is why this is limited only to public projects and

          4  machines used on public projects. I know there may

          5  be issues of federal preemption to some extent, but

          6  to the extent that we can also extend this to other

          7  equipment working in our City, I certainly as a

          8  member of the Committee and a member of the Council

          9  would support it and would hope that the Committee

         10  will work on it.

         11                 I note, by the way, with regret that

         12  you are not feeling well, and I know you mentioned

         13  that in your beginning remarks, and part of that is

         14  respiratory issues which are contributed to, I know,

         15  by the air in our City, and everyone may say on a

         16  beautiful day like this, well, we don't have air

         17  quality, look out the window, well, I welcome

         18  anybody to take off in a plane, as most of you have,

         19  from the airport, and look at the layer of

         20  pollutants that lies over this City everyday, even

         21  on the most beautiful day. And there has to be some

         22  recognition that if we don't do something about it,

         23  we're all degrading our health and life expectancy.

         24                 So, I support the legislation. I

         25  congratulate you on moving it. I apologize for
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          2  leaving early and look forward to further steps.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          4                 Thank you, Council Member Koppell.

          5  You're a great member of the Committee, and I thank

          6  you for your support of everything that we do here.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Excuse me, Mr.

          8  Chair. Just in my remarks in noting all who played

          9  the role. I know our attorney has been in constant

         10  touch with the Administration from whom we'll hear,

         11  but I am also aware of their involvement and

         12  cooperation. I do want to say on behalf of my

         13  district that I appreciate the collaboration and the

         14  collaborative approach on this, towards this,

         15  between the Council and the Administration. I didn't

         16  want to leave them out.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, sure. You

         19  bet. Okay, we're going to get down to our first

         20  witness, and we're pleased to welcome Mark Lanaghan

         21  from DEP, who will be our first witness. Always a

         22  pleasure to have Mark and all of the good people

         23  from DEP. I see Jerry Kelpin here, another good

         24  friend.

         25                 So without further ado, I'll ask
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          2  Donna to give the oath and you could state your name

          3  for the record and proceed with your good testimony.

          4                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          5  right hand.

          6                 In the testimony that you're about to

          7  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          8  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: I

         10  do.

         11                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: Good

         13  morning, Mr. Chairman, and members of the Committee

         14  and staff. My name is Mark Lanaghan, and I'm at the

         15  New York City Department of Environmental

         16  Protection.

         17                 On behalf of Commissioner Ward and

         18  the Administration, I appreciate this opportunity to

         19  offer a very few very brief remarks on the

         20  legislation before us.

         21                 The Administration greatly

         22  appreciates the opportunity to work with the Council

         23  on promoting the use of low sulfur fuel as a way to

         24  reduce tailpipe emissions in New York City from

         25  diesel engines.
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          2                 The Administration also greatly

          3  appreciates the tremendous cooperation shown by the

          4  Committee and its staff in responding to concerns

          5  expressed over provisions in earlier drafts. I know

          6  that the Committee Counsel has worked a lot of late

          7  nights over the holidays in accommodating concerns

          8  expressed by Mayoral agencies and we noted that and

          9  we greatly appreciate it.

         10                 That said, there are a couple of

         11  outstanding concerns that I wanted to bring to your

         12  attention, I believe they've already been discussed

         13  with Donna and the Committee staff.

         14                 The first one is the threshold of, I

         15  believe in this version of the bill, the threshold

         16  for engine sizes 60 horsepower, and I'm advised by

         17  colleagues at DOT that certain types of horticulture

         18  maintenance equipment operated by DOT is in the

         19  range of 60 to 65 horsepower, and some of that

         20  equipment may therefore be captured by the threshold

         21  in the bill, retrofitting equipment of that size and

         22  of that height I'm advised is especially difficult

         23  and it may be problematic for DOT to acquire

         24  emission control devices and to operate this

         25  equipment, efficiently using those emission control
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          2  devices.

          3                 Also this type of equipment is very

          4  transient by nature and having low sulfur fuel

          5  available at the many sites where the equipment is

          6  operated may also be a little bit difficult.

          7                 That's the first of the two concerns

          8  I want to bring to your attention.

          9                 The second one is the provisions of

         10  the bill that require reporting to the Speaker on a

         11  fairly immediate time frame when certain findings or

         12  determinations are made.

         13                 There are determinations pursuant to

         14  provision J and pursuant to provision L that may

         15  have to be made for a number of agencies. Those

         16  findings, as well as renewals of the findings are in

         17  the current version of the bill, have to be reported

         18  to the Speaker within five days.

         19                 Complying with that kind of time

         20  frame consistently may be an issue and it's

         21  something we'd like to discuss further with staff.

         22                 Those two concerns aside, we hope for

         23  closure in the very near future and we thank you for

         24  your cooperation shown to date.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.
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          2                 Can you just go over that second

          3  concern? Of course the first one was about the 60

          4  horsepower, or that was in that range, but then you

          5  talked about the reporting requirements. Could you

          6  just go through that again for me?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: The

          8  threshold, the horsepower threshold?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN:

         11  There are colleagues here from DOT that may be able

         12  to assist me.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN:

         15  There are types of lawnmowers --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. I meant a

         17  little more like why is it difficult to do the

         18  retrofit of those?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN:

         20  There may not be devices available that can control

         21  emissions from that size of equipment I am advised.

         22  There certainly isn't now, to my knowledge, any

         23  equipment, let alone verified equipment that would

         24  control emissions.

         25                 So that would constitute best
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          2  available technology. And it may be that that will

          3  become available at a certain point, but it is one

          4  type of equipment where there is significant

          5  certainty about the ability to comply with the

          6  requirements of the bill.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, counsel

          8  tells me that you're in ongoing discussions on these

          9  things, and we look forward to working with you on

         10  them as we come to closure.

         11                 Councilman Gerson has questions.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Yes. Just

         13  appreciate your testimony and remarks and I just

         14  hope when you say you look forward to reaching

         15  closure in the near future that the very near future

         16  means on schedule in order to get it done this

         17  session before the end of the calendar year, so we

         18  really can make this a holiday gift to our lungs.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN:

         20  We'll do our best, Council member.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I'm sure if we

         22  do, we'll succeed.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mark.

         25  And give my best to the Commissioner and all the
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          2  good people.

          3                 Oh, Council Member Jennings has a

          4  question.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Mr.

          6  Commissioner, what equipment can be retrofitted, if

          7  any? Or can be?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: It

          9  might be retrofitted, for that size of equipment I'm

         10  advised there's a lot more uncertainty about the

         11  availability of the market to provide a device that

         12  meets the requirements of the bill.

         13                 More than that I'm not really that

         14  familiar with the facts.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Can you

         16  think of any equipment that can meet the bill at

         17  all? Can you think of anything?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: Can

         19  I think of any type of diesel non-road equipment? We

         20  believe that many types of diesel non-road equipment

         21  covered by the bill will be able to comply with the

         22  best available technology requirements in the bill.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Are there

         24  many, many items that cannot comply with the

         25  requirements of the bill?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN:

          3  There may be items for which best available

          4  technology is not available at the point where the

          5  requirement becomes effective.

          6                 Among the many provisions in the bill

          7  that reflect the cooperation shown by the Council,

          8  the bill allows for findings and determinations

          9  where equipment or fuel necessary to meet the

         10  requirements of the bill is not available.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Do you have

         12  any examples of those equipment that cannot meet it?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: It

         14  could be any type or size of diesel non-road

         15  equipment, backhoes, bull-dozers, cranes. There may

         16  be for a certain size of equipment or for a certain

         17  very specific type of equipment with engine

         18  characteristics different than many other engines in

         19  that type of vehicle class, for any number of

         20  reasons the manufacturers of emission control

         21  devices may not have created a device that is, even

         22  if modified, sufficient to meet the requirements of

         23  the bill.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: All right,

         25  thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          3                 So, Mark, as I said, give my best to

          4  the Commissioner, and don't tell him about me not

          5  doing too well on that breath blowing thing. I still

          6  want him to fear me. You know, I want him to think I

          7  have a lot of wind, you know? So, thanks very much.

          8  I look forward to working with you and all the other

          9  folks at DEP.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN:

         11  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And the next

         13  witness from the Manhattan Borough President's

         14  Office, Rich Muller.

         15                 Rich, thanks for coming.

         16                 Donna, we need you to do the oath.

         17                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         18  right hand. In the testimony that you're about to

         19  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         20  whole truth and nothing but the truth.

         21                 MR. MULLER: I do.

         22                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just before you

         24  say your testimony. I'm negligent, I have not

         25  recognized Council Member Serrano from the Bronx who
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          2  has joined us. Welcome. Thank you.

          3                 Okay, we're all yours.

          4                 MR. MULLER: Hello, Mr. Chair, and

          5  members and staff of the Committee. I'm Rich Muller,

          6  and I'm pleased to deliver the testimony of the

          7  Manhattan Borough President C. Virginia Fields on

          8  proposed Intro. 191-A.

          9                 Borough President Fields supports

         10  this Committee in its efforts to improve Manhattan's

         11  air quality by requiring non-road construction

         12  vehicles to burn cleaner fuel and control emissions

         13  with the best available technology.

         14                 The Borough President is glad to see

         15  that the Committee has continued its work to move

         16  this legislation forward.

         17                 Improvement in air quality requires

         18  work on many fronts and non-road construction

         19  vehicles will be a very considerable source of

         20  localized diesel particulate pollution downtown.

         21                 The nation has its eyes on the

         22  rebuilding of Lower Manhattan, so this legislation

         23  will set an example for other localities, but more

         24  importantly, for the other entities involved in the

         25  rebuilding effort. The Port Authority has already
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          2  taken steps to do its part.

          3                 This legislation will set an

          4  important example, we must do all we can to minimize

          5  pollution from other stationary sources, such as

          6  back-up generators, but also for mobile sources,

          7  such as ferries, school buses, and construction

          8  vehicles sooner rather than later.

          9                 Borough President Fields trusts that

         10  the technical contractual aspects of this

         11  legislation, such as allowance items, will be

         12  resolved in such a way that minority and women-owned

         13  businesses will not be put at a disadvantage in the

         14  bidding process.

         15                 Borough President Fields thanks the

         16  sponsors of proposed Intro. 191-A and this Committee

         17  for their initiative in protecting the millions of

         18  people who live and work in the Borough of

         19  Manhattan.

         20                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         21  testify.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         23                 Thank you, Mr. Muller. Thank you very

         24  much for bringing the support of the Borough

         25  President. She's always very supportive of the good

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  things that we do anyway. So, we look upon her and

          3  her office and you as real allies in our fight here,

          4  and we thank you very much for your support. Please

          5  give our best to the Borough President.

          6                 MR. MULLER: Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          8                 Our next witness is David Park from

          9  NESCAUM.

         10                 And after Mr. Park, we'll have a

         11  panel of people from the Environmental Community,

         12  Rich Kassel, Craig Wilson and Andy Darryl. You guys

         13  are on deck.

         14                 Mr. Park, thanks for being with us. I

         15  appreciate your spending time with us here. Donna

         16  will give you the oath, and then proceed with your

         17  testimony.

         18                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         19  right hand.

         20                 In the testimony that you're about to

         21  give, do you swear to tell the truth, the whole

         22  truth and nothing but the truth?

         23                 MR. PARK: I do.

         24                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I think your mic
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          2  may be off. You have to make sure that the light is

          3  off. The red light is off, and you've got to speak

          4  right into it.

          5                 MR. PARK: I had this problem the last

          6  time.

          7                 Good afternoon. Thank you very much

          8  for having me, Councilors. I appreciate the

          9  opportunity to comment once again.

         10                 First of all, I want to say that I'm

         11  impressed by your and your Council staff commitment

         12  to this issue, and certainly we've spent a great

         13  deal of time interacting with Donna on this issue.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         15                 MR. PARK: Really, I'd like to say

         16  that from a health perspective, I and NESCAUM as an

         17  organization think that diesel emission control from

         18  the non-road sector is probably the most important

         19  sector to control, and that's because that sector

         20  can be up to four times or more polluting than any

         21  other diesel on-road vehicle.

         22                 What I'd like to do today is, I don't

         23  have a prepared statement, but offer my assistance

         24  from a technical perspective. If there are any

         25  questions you have, I certainly am very much
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          2  involved in the control of construction equipment

          3  and all types of diesel equipment, and I'll just

          4  open it up and provide by technical perspective.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, first I'd

          6  like to thank you for your ongoing interest and

          7  involvement with the staff as we've tried to go

          8  forward on this tricky matter. There are a lot of

          9  issues and a lot at stake, you know, and people in

         10  the contracting business are, you know, rightly

         11  concerned about how this is going to impact them, so

         12  many things to work out, and your support has been

         13  very, very valuable to us. And Counsel to the

         14  Committee has indicated you have been most helpful

         15  in, you know, working with us.

         16                 I have to see if I have any specific

         17  things I want to ask you now.

         18                 Okay, what has been the response of

         19  non-road vehicle operator to the use of ultra low

         20  sulfur diesel, and these kinds of technologies on

         21  sites, which NESCAUM has been involved?

         22                 MR. PARK: There was initial

         23  reluctance. There always is. Any time you introduce

         24  a new, someone new to a construction site, if it can

         25  interfere with a schedule, they have great concern
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          2  over that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          4                 MR. PARK: We found that we've

          5  interacted with the engine manufacturers and with

          6  the fuel suppliers and make certain that the fuel

          7  quality is appropriate for the equipment that's

          8  being used, and we've gotten endorsements actually

          9  from the folks that are actually using the fuel. It

         10  has not interfered in their operation at all.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And how many

         12  projects have you been involved in?

         13                 MR. PARK: As an organization we've

         14  been involved with three major projects: The Big Dig

         15  in Boston.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         17                 MR. PARK: Connecticut, DOT's

         18  improvement of the I 95 corridor and here in Lower

         19  Manhattan World Trade.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Big projects.

         21                 Are there technologies on the EPA and

         22  CARB, verified lists that are verified for on-road

         23  vehicles, but may be used for non-road vehicles?

         24                 MR. PARK: I would say the EPA

         25  verified list is a growing list and that it,
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          2  although most of the products are verified for

          3  on-road use, I would say that would not exclude them

          4  from them being used in the non-road sector they

          5  just have not been verified from that sector. Only

          6  one product that has been verified for non-road use

          7  on the EPA list.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And what

          9  resources, if any, would be available, for help with

         10  implementation of these strategies?

         11                 MR. PARK: I would look to the engine

         12  manufacturers and the technology manufacturers,

         13  first and foremost, because they certainly have a

         14  vested interest in the use of their products.

         15                 It's an increased market for them,

         16  first of all, and if they are the engine

         17  manufacturer, and many manufacturers have begun a

         18  retrofit division, it's in their interest to

         19  cooperate.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Getting back to

         21  DEP's testimony about the vehicles within the 60 and

         22  65 horsepower range, which, you know, DEP and other

         23  agencies seem to have some difficulty with, do you

         24  have any insights of perspectives on that?

         25                 MR. PARK: I would say that, first of
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          2  all, the bill calls for best available technology,

          3  and certainly for some engines the application is

          4  very critical, perhaps engine temperature or exhaust

          5  temperature is perhaps the most critical factor.

          6                 As long as the exhaust temperatures

          7  are appropriate for the application, I'm fairly

          8  certain the manufacturers can produce a retrofit

          9  device for that size engine. Again, I would refer to

         10  the engine manufacturers and the device

         11  manufacturers for assistance in that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you.

         13                 Council Member Gerson has a question.

         14                 Council Member Gerson.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Yes, just,

         16  first of all, we attended the convention that you

         17  had, I guess it was a month or so ago on retrofit

         18  technology, was a very impressive display in

         19  gatherings which helped us in our efforts. I wanted

         20  to thank you for that, as well as for your ongoing

         21  input and coordination.

         22                 I just want to pick up on the point

         23  of retrofit technology, and you heard the

         24  questioning before about some vehicles not perhaps

         25  currently being suitable for retrofit.
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          2                 Let me just first make the point, as

          3  Counsel advised me that the bill still does require

          4  where a choice exists, the use of equipment which is

          5  suitable for retrofit technology, but what is your

          6  sense in terms of the universe of equipment that no

          7  way, no how, with no substitutes could be

          8  retrofitted, and any advice on what we could do to

          9  evolve and change that situation?

         10                 MR. PARK: Sure. I would say that for

         11  the most part in requiring ultra low sulfur diesel

         12  fuel, that universe gets very small. I would think

         13  that most catalysts or emission control technology

         14  manufacturers would say the greatest barrier to

         15  their technology is the sulfur, the sulfur and the

         16  fuel.

         17                 Once you remove that barrier by

         18  requiring ultra low sulfur diesel fuel, essentially

         19  I would say there is not a technology that cannot be

         20  used.

         21                 Well, let me back up. You can find a

         22  technology for an application, even if your exhaust

         23  temperatures are too low for the most effective use

         24  of these technologies, the lowest level of

         25  technology, the diesel oxidation catalyst should
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          2  have no technological concerns, because of the

          3  reduction in the sulfur and the fuel. And it may not

          4  be operating as optimally or as efficiently as it

          5  could, if you're not generating enough exhaust

          6  temperature, but it will not hamper the operation of

          7  the engine itself.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, I think

          9  that's a very important response, and thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 I just will tell you as we go

         12  forward, we'll continue to look forward in

         13  collaborating as we do other legislation for other

         14  sources in other types of engines, and I hope the

         15  Administration will reach out to you for your input

         16  as they develop strategies for implementation of

         17  this and for identification of the available

         18  technology.

         19                 But thank you very much.

         20                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Park.

         23                 MR. PARK: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's nice of you

         25  to be with us today.
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          2                 And we have our panelists, as I

          3  mentioned before, Craig Wilson, from the American

          4  Lung Association; Andy Darrell from Environmental

          5  Defense; and Rich Kassel from NRDC.

          6                 To be followed by Jeff Elmer from the

          7  General Contractors Association.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Chair, as

          9  they're finding their seats, I've just got to

         10  reiterate that what a pleasure it's been for me to

         11  have worked with each of these distinguished

         12  individuals, both enlightening and a lot of fun.

         13                 So, I thank you each.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Absolutely.

         15  These are my guys, you know what I mean?

         16                 You may be my guys, but you've still

         17  got to go through the ritual over here.

         18                 So, Donna will administer the oath.

         19                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         20  right hand.

         21                 In the testimony that you're about to

         22  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         23  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         24                 MR. WILSON: I do.

         25                 MR. KASSEL: I do.
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          2                 MR. DARRELL: I do.

          3                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          5  Thanks so much for being here today. We appreciate

          6  your involvement.

          7                 We're going to leave to you guys the

          8  politically delicate task of who goes first.

          9                 Now, the size is going to stay, the

         10  shape of the table is what it is. Okay? I took care

         11  of that. So you've got to do, you know, who goes

         12  first. Knowing that whoever goes first is going to

         13  send a powerful signal here.

         14                 MR. WILSON: I'll go first.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         16                 MR. WILSON: My name is Craig Wilson.

         17  I'm Associate Director of Environmental Health for

         18  the American Lung Association of the City of New

         19  York.

         20                 First I'd like to thank the Council

         21  and as many people have mentioned, Donna's hard

         22  work, even spent the day after Thanksgiving on the

         23  phone together, so she spent many late nights and

         24  holiday hours working on this bill.

         25                 Today I'd just like to take a few
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          2  moments to reiterate our concerns about the state of

          3  New York City's Air Quality, and the health

          4  consequences of the air quality that we're breathing

          5  every day. We've heard a little discussion of it

          6  earlier. But, again, for the fourth year in a row,

          7  according to our annual state of the air report, all

          8  the boroughs are monitored for air quality

          9  throughout the City have failed our ozone air

         10  quality tactics. Clearly the problem is not getting

         11  better. And Richmond County, Staten Island actually

         12  has the worst air quality of any county in the

         13  State.

         14                 As a result of this air quality, we

         15  know that through the New York City Department of

         16  Health, 1 million New York City residents have

         17  asthma, 300,000 of which are children, clearly, a

         18  chronic problem affecting one out of every eight to

         19  ten New York City residents.

         20                 Not only does it affect them in their

         21  daily lives, but the cost of asthma reached into the

         22  hundreds of millions. More research by the

         23  Department of Health shows that $242 million in

         24  medical expenses in one year alone, and there are

         25  probably more expenses that are not documented in
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          2  that number.

          3                 So, clearly we have a lot of work to

          4  do and it's legislation like the Council is

          5  considering today that can move us down the road to

          6  cleaner air, and so the American Lung Association is

          7  glad to offer our full support for the legislation

          8  and we urge the Council to act swiftly in passing it

          9  and we look forward to working with you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         11                 What we'll do is hear each of the

         12  statements, and then we'll question you as a panel.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 MR. DARRELL: Thank you very much. I

         15  am Andy Darrell, New York Regional Director at

         16  Environmental Defense, and I'd like to join in the

         17  many courses of thanks that have been offered

         18  already this afternoon.

         19                 I think it's remarkable when I think

         20  back to when I and my colleagues in the

         21  environmental community first began speaking about

         22  this bill with Council Member Gerson and his staff

         23  many months ago, I'm not sure that we expected or

         24  anticipated to move this quickly through the

         25  political process in New York, and we're thrilled to
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          2  be here today.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You're welcome.

          4                 MR. DARRELL: So thank you.

          5                 I just want to point out a few key

          6  elements of the bill, as revised, but I think are

          7  centrally important and make it stronger going

          8  forward.

          9                 It now explicitly focuses on two key

         10  pollutants that plague our air quality here in New

         11  York City, fine particulate matter, and nitrogen

         12  oxides, and I think it's treated very appropriately

         13  in the bill and it's very important that they be

         14  called out and focused on in the bill itself.

         15                 Secondly is the focus on 15 part per

         16  million ultra low sulfur diesel. It's critically

         17  important that New York City make that commitment to

         18  that level of cleanliness of the fuel. There are

         19  provisions in the bill that provide for flexibility,

         20  in terms of the availability of that fuel, but as we

         21  look forward into the future, we see the increasing

         22  availability of that fuel throughout this market.

         23  This was the right time to make that commitment,

         24  looking forward into the future.

         25                 Third is the commitment and
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          2  continuing commitment to best available technology.

          3  As you know, the technology retrofits in this class

          4  of vehicle is evolving very quickly, and as we go

          5  forward each year there will be new technologies

          6  available on the market, and so a commitment to the

          7  best available technology of each class of vehicle

          8  at a given time is a way to keep this bill a living

          9  bill going forward.

         10                 Fourth is the aggressive and

         11  ambitious, yet, I think very practical schedule for

         12  implementation of the bill. I think this has been

         13  negotiated very carefully with the environmental

         14  community, contractors, and the agencies and I think

         15  we're at a point now where we have a good schedule,

         16  it's ambitious but it's practical at the same time.

         17                 And lastly I would just like to note,

         18  the great deal of flexibility that is built into

         19  this bill in terms of allowing the Commissioner and

         20  the agencies to select the best technologies

         21  available for specific classes of machinery at given

         22  times, and I'm hopeful that the concerns raised by

         23  the Department of Environmental Protection this

         24  afternoon, about the class of vehicles in the 60 to

         25  65 horsepower range, that hopefully the waiver
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          2  provisions and the flexibility in the bill will be

          3  enough to address that class of vehicle and that the

          4  bill will continue to cover them for the time when

          5  appropriate technology is available in the

          6  marketplace to cover them.

          7                 So, again, thank you very much, and I

          8  appreciate all the work that has been done by

          9  everybody here to move this forward.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         11                 MR. KASSEL: Thank you. My name is

         12  Richard Kassel. I am a Senior Attorney at the

         13  Natural Resources Defense Council, and I direct our

         14  National Vehicles and Fuels Project. For the past 12

         15  years I've focused most of my work on cleaning up

         16  the City's and the nation's dirty diesels, and I've

         17  appeared before this body many times, and every time

         18  I come to say thank you for your leadership, because

         19  going back all the way to Local Law 6 of 1991 it's

         20  out of this room that some of the nation's first

         21  steps towards cleaner vehicles and cleaner fuels

         22  have taken place, and I want to add my name and my

         23  organization to the core of thanks, to the members,

         24  and Donna, to Richard, for all of your hard work

         25  these past few months.
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          2                 You know, a little bit of historical

          3  perspective here, ten, 12 years ago when Local Law 6

          4  was first being kicked around, the notion of a

          5  cleaner diesel was, well, it was an oxymoron. There

          6  was no such thing as a cleaner diesel, and the

          7  notion was that if you wanted to clean up a piece of

          8  construction equipment or a bus or a truck, you

          9  probably had to either throw your hands up in

         10  despair or you had to look to alternative fuels,

         11  like natural gas and the others. And today, thanks

         12  to local programs that have taken place here in New

         13  York City, State programs, federal programs, there

         14  is a revolution in clean diesel, fuels and

         15  technology taking place.

         16                 Investments in making these pieces of

         17  construction equipment, trucks, buses cleaner, to

         18  levels that were really hard to imagine, just five

         19  or six years ago.

         20                 The Council has been a part of that,

         21  of making that revolution happen, and it's in that

         22  context that I wanted to say a couple of words in

         23  strong support of 191-A, because it really does

         24  continue the Council's leadership on clean vehicle

         25  issues.
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          2                 What we've learned in the last few

          3  years is that the way to clean up a diesel vehicle,

          4  whether it's a truck or a bus, construction

          5  equipment, whatever, is the cheapest and quickest

          6  way to do it is by using a systems approach that

          7  combines cleaner fuel with best available emission

          8  control technologies, improved engine technologies,

          9  to basically bring about a cleaner system.

         10                 Federal rules, now coming on line,

         11  adopting the systems approach, and 191-A extends it

         12  to the construction equipment sector. And it's the

         13  right place to go for the next step. Why?

         14  Construction equipment is some of the dirtiest

         15  diesel still in use in the City.

         16                 We all know the basic data, you know,

         17  diesel, you've heard it a thousand times, diesel

         18  soot triggers asthma attacks, bronchitis, cancer,

         19  emphysema, various types of heart disease and even

         20  premature death. Nitrogen oxides from diesels helps

         21  trigger ground levels of summertime smog, acid rain

         22  in the Adirondacks and so on.

         23                 Non-road engines, because the fuel is

         24  so dirty, typical national averages above 3,000 plus

         25  per million right now. Because the fuel is so dirty
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          2  with sulfur contamination, non-road engines can't

          3  use the type of particulate and nitrogen oxide

          4  emission controls that we're seeing in other

          5  sectors.

          6                 That's why it's so important to use

          7  the systems approach, drop the sulfur down to 15

          8  parts per million, which would then enable the types

          9  of emissions controls that can really go a very,

         10  very long way to solving this problem. And it is a

         11  big problem.

         12                 We did a study in the mid nineties

         13  where we looked at current particulate levels in New

         14  York and concluded that roughly 4,000 New Yorkers

         15  died prematurely every year because of then current

         16  levels of particulate matter.

         17                 Well, the diesel engines that were on

         18  Madison Avenue or Canal Street, or in construction

         19  sites around the City in 1995, for better or for

         20  worse, are still mostly with us.

         21                 On 9/11, there's a lot of attention

         22  that went to what to do about diesels and the

         23  rebuilding. That was an important first step. The

         24  second step was extending it Citywide. 191-A does

         25  that, it does it on a timetable that makes sense. It
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          2  does it with a series of provisions for defining

          3  what's included and what's not, what fuel qualifies

          4  and what doesn't, how to deal with the fact that new

          5  technologies are coming on line every year. It

          6  strikes the right balance.

          7                 I'll close there. I'll take any

          8  questions that you have, and I just want to say

          9  thank you, again. I think that this is yet another

         10  step in the Council's continuing leadership on

         11  vehicle issues for the City and for the entire

         12  nation.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         14  you, all.

         15                 I would just like to recognize the

         16  presence of the proud sponsor of this bill, Council

         17  Member Bill DeBlasio from Brooklyn. We're very happy

         18  to have you with us.

         19                 Yes, I just want to thank you, also,

         20  for all the good work you've done. You really made

         21  our staff earn their pay. We want to get absolutely

         22  the best product we practically can, and we wouldn't

         23  be where we are right now without the good work of

         24  you and your staff and I thank you for that.

         25                 Although I had, of course, a
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          2  long-time interest in this issue of clean air, being

          3  the analyst to the Committee for many, many years or

          4  whatever, I've got to confess, recently I mentioned

          5  at the outset, when I, you know, went to the

          6  pulmonologist and blew on this thing and she's like,

          7  you know, you could be developing asthma, you could,

          8  you know, and I'm like, I'm young, I run, I do all

          9  these kinds of things, and she said, hey, you know,

         10  you're exposed to a lot of things, and we have to

         11  think about putting you on a dilator or something.

         12  We'll see. You know, let us know and we'll kind of

         13  work with it or whatever.

         14                 So, and up until now I've never had

         15  any member of my family who had been impacted by

         16  asthma or whatever. So, talk about being parochial,

         17  this is like personal, you know, and so clearly it's

         18  -- okay, Bill is going to comment in a minute on

         19  that. So, thank you for that.

         20                 Do you know what types of vehicles

         21  might fall between the 60 and 65 horsepower range as

         22  we sort of, you know, for construction equipment, as

         23  we sort of probe this? I mean, what are your

         24  insights into that, sort of class of construction

         25  equipment?
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          2                 MR. DARRELL: I'd have to really look

          3  into it a little more carefully, but what mostly

          4  we're looking at in the 50 to 60, 65 maybe even a

          5  little higher than that, are going to be smaller

          6  pieces of equipment operated by one person,

          7  maintenance equipment and so on.

          8                 I think, though, the way to handle

          9  this issue is not to try to catch exactly a certain

         10  horsepower cut point that grabs one model and

         11  doesn't grab another model. Because the engine sizes

         12  change, the models change every year. What

         13  Caterpillers are selling today or John Deere is

         14  selling today will be different than two years from

         15  now or four years from now.

         16                 I think the bill takes a better

         17  approach in trying to fine-tune that and instead

         18  adopts a concept that include all the engines and

         19  then ask DEP to do a review of what's the best

         20  available technology and then to the extent there's

         21  technology that reduces emissions, that doesn't

         22  provide, create a safety risk and so on and so

         23  forth, require the contractors of the agencies to

         24  use it, and to provide the kind of waiver provisions

         25  that have been in the drafts and that staff and the
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          2  Administration have been talking about.

          3                 I think it's a much better way to go

          4  than to keep fine-tuning the horsepower.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          6                 MR. KASSEL: I just want to echo. I

          7  mean, I think the basic architecture of this bill

          8  has been set up to give DEP the ability to waive the

          9  applicability of the retrofit requirement, for

         10  example, in circumstances where the retrofits aren't

         11  available.

         12                 And I think rather than go back and

         13  start to change the horsepower threshold, it would

         14  be important to have them look at those waiver

         15  provisions, and gain some comfort that they would in

         16  fact protect the agencies in this context.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         18                 Council Member DeBlasio, followed by

         19  Council Member Gerson, who has some comments as

         20  well.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman. Just a very brief comment. First, I'll

         23  thank you for the work you've done on this issue,

         24  continuing the work on this legislation through this

         25  hearing. I think the story you just told about your
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          2  own personal experience, I think this is what makes

          3  this legislation so real. And I want to thank

          4  Council Member Gerson for what he's done to create

          5  this legislation, and also for his constant advocacy

          6  for Lower Manhattan, and this is where people are

          7  feeling this problem in particular.

          8                 But just, I am an asthma sufferer. I

          9  got diagnosed about ten years ago, and my wife and

         10  my daughter Kiara also have asthma, and it is

         11  amazing how much what we do as a City every day is

         12  contributing to this problem, and it's not that

         13  we're fighting, we're contributing to it by the

         14  actions of our City government inadvertently, and

         15  obviously of industry, and I think we all have to

         16  work together to solve it. This legislation is a

         17  very straightforward positive way of reducing the

         18  problem and making the City once again more the

         19  leader in protecting hundreds of thousands of New

         20  Yorkers who have the same problem I have, and I hope

         21  you don't have, but it can be controlled.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         24  you, Bill.

         25                 Council Member Gerson.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: If anyone

          3  needed any additional motivation to get this and

          4  other similar bills passed, it's to assure that this

          5  City for decades have not longer enjoyed the benefit

          6  of the strong clarion voices of Council Members

          7  Gennaro and DeBlasio, so we certainly need to go

          8  forward with that.

          9                 I just, and of course another step

         10  forward will be the SUV van which Council Member

         11  DeBlasio has spearheaded, and we've got to get that

         12  done too.

         13                 Just one question following up on the

         14  earlier point by my colleague Council Member

         15  Koppell. I think we all would like to eventually,

         16  and sooner rather than later, see this extended to

         17  private construction sites, as well as to other

         18  emission sources, but can you just comment that even

         19  on the significance and the importance of this, even

         20  within its limitation to City contracts, I think

         21  it's important to note that if we hear that from

         22  you.

         23                 MR. KASSEL: We've seen this time and

         24  again. Started with alternative fuel vehicles, we've

         25  seen it with recycled paper and we've certainly seen

                                                            50

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  it in the area of cleaner diesel fuels and

          3  technologies. When a large municipal government like

          4  New York City makes a decision to buy a certain

          5  product only to contract with contractors that use a

          6  certain product only, it sends an important market

          7  signal. Sometimes it's not a large enough signal to

          8  move the whole market. You know, Local Law 6 was not

          9  going to change the basic product lines coming out

         10  of Ford and General Motors, but it sends an

         11  important symbolic signal at least, and sometimes

         12  this City is a large enough consumer to actually

         13  change the market.

         14                 Right now there is a race in the

         15  diesel engine and emission control world towards

         16  cleaner diesels. That race is largely happening

         17  thanks to Transit bus programs, school bus programs

         18  and truck programs.

         19                 It's only starting to trickle into

         20  construction equipment. Dave Park talked a bit about

         21  that earlier.

         22                 The way that it will happen faster is

         23  through legislation like this, that sends a signal

         24  to the John Deeres of the world and the Caterpillars

         25  of the world and says take some of that R and D that

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  you're doing to your highway vehicle and move it

          3  over here. Bring it over. And it's also worth noting

          4  that in EPA's proposal for non-road fuel and

          5  emissions, that according to the administration, it

          6  should be finalized some time next spring, there are

          7  provisions that would give engine companies credits,

          8  submission credits, for investing in retrofits. And

          9  who knows how that proposal will be finalized, if it

         10  will be finalized in its current form on schedule

         11  and so on.

         12                 If it is, that will create a powerful

         13  incentive to the engine companies to invest in and

         14  place retrofit equipment.

         15                 Where are they going to put it? Well,

         16  they're more likely to put it in cities like New

         17  York that would have programs already on the books

         18  that require it to be used than to put it anywhere

         19  else. And, so, I think that there were a number of

         20  reasons why this is both significant, and can

         21  trigger some further and broader investments in

         22  cleaner diesel technology.

         23                 MR. DARRELL: I think in the context

         24  of the non-road world, the timing of this bill is

         25  really quite remarkable. If you look around the
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          2  country now there are a number of programs going

          3  forward essentially on a pilot basis or a voluntary

          4  basis that are putting retrofits into place on

          5  important large projects, including here in New York

          6  City at the World Trade Center, through State action

          7  there is a project moving forward with the

          8  cooperation of the City and the State and the

          9  private sector to use clean fuels in retrofits for

         10  the ferries in New York Harbor that operate also on

         11  non-road engines quite similar to the construction

         12  machinery that we're talking about here today. This

         13  bill really represents the first time that a major

         14  American City is going to step forward and make a

         15  comprehensive commitment to using clean fuels in

         16  retrofits across the City in all of its public works

         17  contracts, and for that it is tremendously

         18  significant. It's going to bring the benefits of

         19  these clean air technologies to every single New

         20  Yorker in every Borough of New York City and it's

         21  going to set a national precedent for other cities

         22  to step forward and begin to do the same thing.

         23                 And as cities like New York step

         24  forward and make this commitment, it sends a very

         25  strong signal to the engine manufacturers, it sends
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          2  a very strong signal to our national government that

          3  this is the right way to go. This is what the people

          4  want, and I think that by taking this step now, New

          5  York is sending that signal at a time when the

          6  technology have been identified in a large variety

          7  of pilot projects around the country, so it's a good

          8  time to make the commitment, both from the point of

          9  view of our understanding and knowledge of the

         10  technology, but also in terms of leading the country

         11  towards a comprehensive solution.

         12                 MR. WILSON: If I could just add on to

         13  what Andy and Rich said, and in addition to the

         14  retrofits that this will further on the fuel side,

         15  you will find more and more of the ultra low sulfur

         16  diesel fuel coming into the New York market, which

         17  the MTA already consumes 40 million gallons a year,

         18  and hopefully through this legislation the City will

         19  consume several more million gallons.

         20                 You will see the price of the ultra

         21  low sulfur diesel fuel drop, and therefore we'll

         22  hope to see more penetration of other markets and

         23  more people volunteering, and not necessarily being

         24  required to use this cleaner fuel that will benefit

         25  us all.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I'm

          3  subbing for Chair Jim Gennaro for a minutes. I want

          4  to thank this panel very much. We really appreciate

          5  your testimony, and now we're going to call up the

          6  next witness.

          7                 Jeff Elmer of the General Contractors

          8  Association of New York.

          9                 Welcome, Jeff. And the practice of

         10  this Committee is to swear in all witnesses, so the

         11  Council will do so.

         12                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         13  right hand.

         14                 In the testimony that you're about to

         15  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         16  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         17                 MR. ELMER: I do.

         18                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         19                 MR. ELMER: I appreciate the

         20  opportunity to speak today on behalf of the members

         21  of the General Contractors Association.

         22                 Our member companies were

         23  instrumental in the clean-up at Ground Zero right

         24  after the terrorist attack. Many of our contractors

         25  are still working in Lower Manhattan. They're
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          2  involved in the continuing reconstruction of Lower

          3  Manhattan's transportation infrastructure, and they

          4  will be directly affected on these projects and

          5  others across the City if 191-A is enacted.

          6                 We're very pleased that the City

          7  Council is making an effort to address the issue of

          8  air pollution and across the five boroughs. We do

          9  want to point out, as Councilman Gerson did already,

         10  that the bill before you only covers the diesel

         11  engines used in non-road construction equipment. In

         12  Lower Manhattan there are emergency back-up

         13  generators at area hospitals, utilities and

         14  municipal buildings, as well as telecom hotels and

         15  other facilities.  To further cut these emissions,

         16  we believe the City Council should include all

         17  non-road engines in this or future legislation, and

         18  I'm glad to know that that's the intent of this

         19  Council.

         20                 Such a measure would dramatically

         21  improve air quality and help us all breathe a little

         22  bit easier.

         23                 The heavy construction industry has

         24  already participated in a number of pilot programs

         25  for reducing air emissions downtown and elsewhere on
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          2  projects like 7 World Trade Center and the Path

          3  Station and the Poletti Power Plant (phonetic) in

          4  Queens, and thus far company officials have been

          5  pleased with the results.

          6                 Our contractors and our partners in

          7  the Operating Engineers Union who run and maintain

          8  the non-road equipment look forward to working

          9  successfully on whatever next steps are taken.

         10                 We're pleased that the City Council

         11  has modified the original bill. The new phased-in

         12  approach is critical, if this program is to be

         13  successful.

         14                 In all the successful retrofit

         15  programs so far, I want to point out the agency is

         16  allowed an exemption, as the bill now proposes for

         17  equipment that could be used for short periods of

         18  time in construction sites. And we're also pleased

         19  that the City Council put language in the bill to

         20  allow certain types of equipment to be exempt from

         21  the retrofit requirement if this would put the

         22  workers in danger.

         23                 The reduction of air pollution is an

         24  important goal for all of us. The key for the

         25  construction industry is to manage the reductions on
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          2  a fair and level playing field that's fair to

          3  contractors, both large and small.

          4                 One problem with this bill as

          5  currently drafted is that it seems to place a

          6  heavier burden on smaller contractors and therefore

          7  doesn't fully ensure the continuing integrity of the

          8  low bid process.

          9                 We believe the legislation should be

         10  further modified before a final vote is taken.

         11                 If the City of New York wants

         12  construction companies to only utilize equipment

         13  that's been outfitted with pollution prevention

         14  devices on construction projects, this City is going

         15  to have to pay for this contractual requirement, as

         16  it pays for all other contractual requirements.

         17                 The pilot programs that have been

         18  undertaken here have worked well for one reason,

         19  only because the agencies that explicitly paid the

         20  cost of retrofitting the equipment.

         21                 The only fair way for the City to

         22  provide a level playing field for all bidders, and

         23  ensure that the engines are retrofitted properly as

         24  to the retrofit, a pay item or an allowance item in

         25  the City contracts.
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          2                 What this means is that the City

          3  agency that bids out the work would set aside money,

          4  which we call an allowance, that the low bidder

          5  could use to purchase and install the engine

          6  emissions technology, if it's not already done a

          7  retrofit.

          8                 If the construction company already

          9  has retrofitted equipment in stock, the retrofit pay

         10  item would remain untouched for the job.

         11                 By creating such an allowance item in

         12  construction project bids, the City would negate the

         13  unfair competitive advantage that would be given to

         14  contractors who have already retrofitted their

         15  equipment on previous jobs, thus the integrity of

         16  the low-bid process will be maintained.

         17                 This is also a simple matter of good

         18  government and sunshine. We want to be able to know

         19  what the cost of this equipment is. We want to put

         20  it right out front so that everybody understands

         21  what the equipment is costing.

         22                 If there's no allowance item for the

         23  retrofit in a bid specification, contractors who

         24  don't have retrofitted equipment, who bid on a new

         25  job, will have to increase the price of their bid to
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          2  reflect the cost that they anticipate paying for the

          3  retrofit.

          4                 This would make it all the more

          5  difficult for the smaller contractors to compete

          6  fairly for business, since very few will be able to

          7  overcome the advantages that larger contractors with

          8  already retrofitted equipment would have.

          9                 Contract specifications that favor

         10  those with already retrofitted equipment are

         11  inherently unfair and counterproductive. The

         12  allowance item would ensure that everybody plays by

         13  the same rules. I don't think anyone wants to put

         14  smaller contractors at an unfair and discriminatory

         15  and competitive disadvantage in the bidding process.

         16                 It's very important to note that the

         17  allowance approach that I talked about that we

         18  suggest will not in fact cost the City a penny more

         19  than the retrofits will cost the City without an

         20  allowance item.

         21                 In fact, it will save the City money

         22  over the longrun by keeping the playing field level.

         23                 There's one other change that the

         24  Council ought to consider.

         25                 We believe it's in the City's
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          2  interest to form an advisory board to counsel and

          3  make recommendations to the DEP Commissioner as to

          4  the best available technology for emissions

          5  reduction.

          6                 This Committee would include agency

          7  officials, representatives from the construction

          8  industry, equipment vendors, environmental

          9  organizations and Lower Manhattan residents.

         10                 The City can only benefit by getting

         11  the best possible advice on this topic and that

         12  would only come from people, the people who I've

         13  just mentioned.

         14                 I urge you to support this

         15  legislation, with these minor modifications, in

         16  order to ensure fairness for the entire contracting

         17  community and the best possible program for New York

         18  City residents.

         19                 And adding to the chorus, I wanted to

         20  thank Councilman Gerson for meeting with us about

         21  this, Councilman Gennaro for holding this hearing

         22  and Donna for being so open for discussion on all

         23  the issues that we presented today and in having a

         24  good dialogue with us about what the concerns of the

         25  industry are.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          4  you, Jeff. It's good to see you and to work with

          5  you, and this is a very touchy area. I know you've

          6  been working very, very closely with our staff,

          7  we've been able to make modifications in the bill to

          8  speak to some of your very legitimate concerns.

          9                 MR. ELMER: Absolutely, and we do

         10  appreciate the modifications that have been made

         11  with input from us and from the environmental groups

         12  and others as well, but we just think there's a

         13  couple of more minor steps that could still be taken

         14  that would really make this the best possible.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We always value

         16  your input. You know, the folks that you represent

         17  are the people who are out there, you know, doing

         18  this stuff 24/7, so we can't have a process without

         19  you, by definition. Thank you for your wonderful

         20  collaboration. We greatly appreciate it.

         21                 Just a few items here. What types of

         22  non-road vehicles may typically be assigned to

         23  public works contracts for fewer than 20 calendar

         24  days; what kind of vehicles would fall in that

         25  category?
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          2                 MR. ELMER: You're talking about the

          3  equipment that would be on construction sites for a

          4  shorter period of time than others?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          6                 MR. ELMER: It could be some

          7  bull-dozers, larger excavating equipment would

          8  typically be there for a shorter time, hydraulic

          9  cranes, things of that nature.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         11                 MR. ELMER: It really depends totally

         12  on the job. Every job is different.

         13                 Probably more frequently you'd see

         14  crawler cranes and rear loaders and the smaller

         15  excavators on a job site for a longer period of

         16  time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, sure.

         18                 MR. ELMER: I think you're capturing

         19  the bulk of the equipment with this bill.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         21                 MR. ELMER: I don't think you're

         22  leaving out very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. And once

         24  again, on our ongoing quest for this equipment that

         25  fall between 60 and 65 horsepower, what kinds of
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          2  equipment do you have in your realm, that is in that

          3  category?

          4                 MR. ELMER: Between 60 and 65?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          6                 MR. ELMER: I'm not sure what

          7  equipment would fall in such a small area. If you

          8  want, I can certainly get back to you about that

          9  quickly.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You know, an

         11  ongoing area of interest.

         12                 MR. ELMER: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Council Member

         14  Gerson has a question.

         15                 Councilman.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, I just

         17  want to once again reiterate not only my

         18  appreciation to you for your input on this bill, but

         19  on behalf of my district, our ongoing gratitude to

         20  the heroic role so many of your members played in

         21  the reconstruction and the clean-up of Lower

         22  Manhattan in the aftermath of the tragedy, and we'll

         23  forever be partners in this ongoing effort and we're

         24  glad to have you with us.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 MR. ELMER: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Jeff, I just

          4  want to once again thank you for all of your work on

          5  it, and give our best to Frank McArdle and there's

          6  Cathy Cudahy right there, I'll just say hi. And as

          7  we proceed you'll be in the loop for sure.

          8                 MR. ELMER: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         10                 And the next panel is Bob Muldoon

         11  from the Sierra Club, Mark Caserta from League of

         12  Conservation -- League of Conservation Voters, and

         13  Christina Hemphill, New York City Environmental

         14  Justice Alliance, to be followed by Susan Stetzer. I

         15  hope I'm saying that right. Of Community Board 3.

         16  She will go on after Mr. Muldoon, Mr. Caserta and

         17  Ms. Hemphill.

         18                 Okay, thanks for being here. Always a

         19  pleasure to have you come before the Committee.

         20                 Counsel to the Committee will

         21  administer the oath and then we'll be more than

         22  ready to go.

         23                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         24  right hand.

         25                 In the testimony that you're about to
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          2  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          3  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          4                 MR. CASERTA: I do.

          5                 MR. MULDOON: I do.

          6                 MS. HEMPHILL: I do.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          8                 Okay, you're in the same quandary

          9  that the other panel had. Let's see how you do.

         10  Again, shape of the table stays constant.

         11                 MR. CASERTA: You know, I've been

         12  working with that motley crew of environmentalists

         13  who were already up here, so I don't have a lot to

         14  add. It's been a pleasure working with them.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You have to say

         16  your name for the record.

         17                 MS. CASERTA: Oh. As one of the motley

         18  crew, my name is Mark Caserta from the New York

         19  League of Conservation Voters.

         20                 So, I just really wanted to, I gave

         21  written testimony, I just want to say that the

         22  League is on board and wholly support the bill, and

         23  I guess we're looking forward to happy holidays for

         24  our lungs. That's it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm for that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: We also like

          3  motley crews.

          4                 MS. HEMPHILL: Well, my name is

          5  Christina Hemphill, I'm the Transportation Justice

          6  Coordinator for the New York City Environmental

          7  Justice Alliance, and I feel like I'm talking really

          8  loud.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's okay.

         10  It's at a nice level.

         11                 MS. HEMPHILL: Okay. I'd like to thank

         12  the Environmental Protection Committee for inviting

         13  me to speak on this bill 191-A.

         14                 And the New York City Environmental

         15  Justice Alliance is a network of grassroots

         16  organizations that addresses the excesses

         17  environmental burdens placed on low income and

         18  minority communities in New York City.

         19                 We support the efforts of the New

         20  York City Council to pass Intro. 191-A to require

         21  the use of ultra low sulfur fuel and emission

         22  control technologies in non-road vehicles.

         23                 We have suggestions that we feel

         24  would also help make the bill even stronger.

         25                 Many of the chemical and diesel fuel,
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          2  including particulate matter and nitrogen oxide are

          3  harmful to human health and degrade air quality and

          4  also exacerbate the symptoms of asthma and induce

          5  asthma attacks.

          6                 The communities that NEJA serve

          7  suffer from high rates of asthma, many times the

          8  national average. One-quarter of the children in

          9  Central Harlem are stricken with asthma, while the

         10  national average of 8.7 percent.

         11                 Nitrogen oxides released through the

         12  burning of diesel fuel is also a component of smog

         13  that plagues New York and other cities.

         14                 In addition, 44 percent of air

         15  pollution originates from non-road sources. Faced

         16  with the growing scientific data proving the health

         17  threat of diesel fuel, the USEPA has already taken

         18  steps to reduce emissions from diesel fuel engines.

         19                 In 2001 EPA enacted a rule that

         20  reduces the allowable sulfur content of diesel fuel

         21  and places stricter emission standards on highway

         22  engines, such as trucks and buses.

         23                 A similar rule is to be adopted in

         24  the spring soon for non-road engines. This rule that

         25  will take effect in 2008 and be fully phased in in
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          2  2014, put similar restrictions on non-road diesel

          3  engines as per highway and will yield the same

          4  emission reductions.

          5                 NEJA is in favor of Intro. 191-A. We

          6  would also like to list suggestions that would

          7  increase effectiveness of Intro. 191-A.

          8                 We feel that the law should apply to

          9  all non-road engines, instead of the present

         10  stipulation of 50 horsepower engines.

         11                 The specification is necessary to

         12  inhibit the use of smaller engines in combination to

         13  forego the new standards placed on larger engines.

         14  And many engines used routinely in construction are

         15  less than 50 horsepower, including pumps and

         16  trenching machines.

         17                 Without the inclusion of engines less

         18  than 50 horsepower, smaller but significant sources

         19  will fall through the cracks and continue to

         20  pollute.

         21                 I definitely agree with what Rich

         22  Kassel was saying earlier about having all of the

         23  engines be included but having DEP set the standards

         24  based on --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's always a
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          2  good idea to agree with Rich Kassel. That's a good

          3  policy.

          4                 MS. HEMPHILL: To set the standards

          5  for what kind of emission reductions can be attained

          6  with smaller engines, and the pollution control

          7  technologies that are available.

          8                 We also recommend that emission

          9  standard levels should be equal to or more stringent

         10  than those that are set in the proposed EPA rule.

         11                 In addition, we encourage that the

         12  use of alternative fuels and power sources, such as

         13  compressed natural gas and electric fuel cells that

         14  meet or achieve greater reduction than new standards

         15  also be included in the bill so that there can be

         16  more options for the contractors to be able to use.

         17                 Impressive reductions in particulate

         18  matter and NOx emissions can be achieved with ultra

         19  low sulfur fuel and pollution control technologies,

         20  however, other alternative fuels have reduced levels

         21  of these two pollutants as well as other chemicals.

         22                 NEJA has long supported improvements

         23  in air quality through the use of cleaner fuels.

         24  There is no reason to compromise public health when

         25  cleaner diesel fuels, alternative fuels and
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          2  pollution control technologies exist that can

          3  recuperate our ailing air quality and thus enhance

          4  public health.

          5                 NYCEJA applauds the Council members

          6  that have created and support Intro 191-A that will

          7  lead to better health and quality of life for New

          8  Yorkers.

          9                 And I would like to say, in addition

         10  we would like to see more legislation that will

         11  improve the private contractors, like some people

         12  were saying earlier, and that would include also

         13  back-up generators which is a live source of

         14  pollution as well.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, all.

         17  Thank you all that you have done on this bill.

         18                 Pardon me. I mentioned the thing, not

         19  only was I a little short on the lung capacity,

         20  something about my brain capacity as well. I'm not

         21  going to put that on my record. I'm flipping a

         22  little bit there as well.

         23                 So, Bob, please.

         24                 MR. MULDOON: Sure. That might have

         25  been a hint to be brief, I'm not sure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, no, no,

          3  please.

          4                 MR. MULDOON: My name is Bob Muldoon,

          5  I'm the Sierra Club Organizer. I'm speaking on

          6  behalf of the New York organization, the New York

          7  Chapter's Clean Air Committee.

          8                 The Sierra Club is one of the oldest

          9  and largest grassroots environmental organizations

         10  in the country, with over 700,000 members

         11  nationwide, and over 14,000 members in New York

         12  City.

         13                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         14  testify. We commend the Committee for addressing

         15  this issue and for proposing to expand the

         16  legislation to apply beyond the World Trade Center

         17  sites to all five boroughs.

         18                 We support expanding 191-A, the on

         19  non-road diesel engine vehicles to all non-road

         20  diesel engines on construction sites. This would

         21  make the bill truly comprehensive in greatly

         22  reducing emissions from construction sites

         23  throughout the City.

         24                 Just briefly, air pollution in

         25  general is a national and it is of particular
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          2  concern here in New York City. While we have seen

          3  some improvements, the air in New York still is not

          4  healthy to breathe.

          5                 Too often the greater New York City

          6  Metropolitan area still fails to meet health

          7  standards for ground level ozone, and is designated

          8  as out of compliance with the standard for toxic

          9  soot.

         10                 The Sierra Club supports strong and

         11  effective air pollution controls on non-road diesel

         12  engines, and commends the Committee on acting

         13  swiftly to broaden and adopt Intro. 191-A.

         14                 And just briefly, I wasn't aware of

         15  all of the changes that were happening today, which

         16  is fine, but taken into account some of the

         17  proposals on them, I think you had some good back

         18  and forth on this bill, and we're very excited about

         19  what you'll be able to come up with.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         21                 Thank you for your support. Thank you

         22  for working with us to represent organizations that

         23  labor hard in the vineyard, and we wouldn't have

         24  been able to accomplish what we have, nor will we be

         25  able to accomplish what we want to without your
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          2  support and advocacy and friendship, so we

          3  appreciate that very much. And we'll keep you in the

          4  loop as we go on.

          5                 And Council Member Gerson has a

          6  comment or a request.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Just ditto.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, really,

          9  thank you all.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you all

         11  very, very much. And continue the collaboration.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         13                 We call Susan Stetzer, a

         14  representative from Community Board 3.

         15                 Thank you. We'll just have to wait

         16  for the Counsel to get you set.

         17                 She's lawyering right now. She's

         18  doing some lawyering.

         19                 MS. STETZER: Okay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         21                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

         22  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

         23  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         24  truth?

         25                 MS. STETZER: I do.
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          4  much for being here, and please state your name for

          5  the record and continue with your testimony.

          6                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Okay, thank you.

          7                 My name is Susan Stetzer, and I am

          8  testifying for Community Board 3 in Manhattan. I'm

          9  Chair of the Public Safety Sanitation Committee.

         10                 Community Board 3. Thank you for the

         11  opportunity to testify on Intro. 191-A. Community

         12  Board 3 voted unanimously to support this

         13  legislation at its November Board meeting. A copy of

         14  our resolution is attached.

         15                 Community Board 3 support is

         16  consistent with our history of vigorous support for

         17  use of best available technology to reduce

         18  pollutants and improve air quality. This is

         19  necessary to protect our public health.

         20                 I'm not going to repeat the health

         21  and the quality issues. We just want to go on record

         22  to say that we believe this legislation will

         23  dramatically reduce pollution and will save lives.

         24                 Just two points. We agree it's

         25  necessary that 14th Street be the northern boundary
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          2  of Lower Manhattan and not Houston Street, as is

          3  sometimes done. And we think it's fitting that the

          4  site of rebuilding from 9/11 should be the site of

          5  setting these standards to protect our environment

          6  and public health, and we think this legislation is

          7  an important step of protecting the public health of

          8  our community.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         11  much for representing Board 3 and for your

         12  resolution, which I read. I'm very gratified when

         13  the local community board, you know, do get involved

         14  in our legislative matters, and not only do they get

         15  involved in past resolutions, but to come before us

         16  and to be an active participant in the processes is

         17  wonderful. And thank you for your patience. It's

         18  been a long hearing.

         19                 MS. STETZER: No problem.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 And Council Member Gerson has parting

         23  thoughts or musings or?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Parting

         25  musings.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I just need to

          4  note on the record, and inform you that Susan

          5  Stetzer and her community board have been among our

          6  City's foremost activists for environmental social

          7  justice and they're the folks who really push the

          8  process along and I just want to take this

          9  opportunity to acknowledge that and thank you for

         10  that and we look forward to working together.

         11                 Again, Mr. Chair, thank you very much

         12  for this productive and important hearing.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         14  you, Council Member Gerson.

         15                 None of us would be here without the

         16  leadership of Council Member Gerson, so thank you.

         17  Thank you, Councilman.

         18                 And just a little bit of housekeeping

         19  before we close out. Just to state for the record

         20  that we received written testimony from Timothy

         21  Johnson of Corning, Incorporated; Swati Prakash of

         22  WEACT; Frank McDonald of the Cummins Engine Company,

         23  and they submitted written testimony but could not

         24  appear before us.

         25                 I'd just like to recognize also the
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          2  liaison for the Mayor's Office, Chris Manning, who

          3  does such a good job for the Administration and

          4  interacting with this Committee. We thank him for

          5  his efforts.

          6                 With no one else before us to

          7  testify, this hearing is adjourned. Thank you.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 3:00 p.m.)
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          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 2nd day of December 2003.
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                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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